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Mr Ian Burt

Principal Planning Policy Officer

Fareham Borough Council

Department for Planning and Transportation 

Civic Offices

Civic Way

Fareham PO16 7PU

        




                                                   27/03/2007
Dear Mr Burt

Affordable Housing Site Size Threshold 
Thank you for informing the Home Builders Federation (HBF) of the council’s intentions to revise its affordable housing requirements through SPD. The HBF is concerned with the manner in which the council is intending to implement its revised SPD requirements. We are also concerned that the council have not consulted sooner on the revisions to the document; ideally this should have taken place prior to the meeting of the Borough Council’s Executive on the 5th February 2007 and any decision on the matter of new affordable housing obligations being made. This is not the first time we have raised concerns about the use of SPD by the council, we recall our previous communications in 2005. Having considered the council’s proposed actions and having looked at the SPD document itself, the HBF wish to make several serious suggestions as to how the council should continue to proceed on this matter. 

Before preceding any further with our response may we reiterate the government policy requirements regarding the use of Supplementary Planning Documents.   

“2.43 Supplementary planning documents may cover a range of issues, both thematic and site specific, which may expand policy or provide further detail to policies in a development plan document. They must not however, be used to allocate land. Supplementary planning documents may take the form of design guides, area development briefs, master plan or issue-based documents which supplement policies in a development plan document. The following principles apply to a supplementary planning document:

i. it must be consistent with national and regional planning policies as well as the policies set out in the development plan documents contained in the local development framework;

ii. it must be clearly cross-referenced to the relevant development plan document policy which it supplements (or, before a relevant development plan document has been adopted, a saved policy);

iii. it must be reviewed on a regular basis alongside reviews of the development plan document policies to which it relates; and

iv. the process by which it has been prepared must be made clear and a statement of conformity with the statement of community involvement must be published with it.

2.44 Supplementary planning documents may contain policies which expands or supplements the policies in development plan documents. However, policies which should be included in a development plan document and subjected to proper independent scrutiny in accordance with the statutory procedures should not be set out in supplementary planning documents” (PPS12 paragraphs 2.43/2.44).

Given the above policy understanding the HBF strongly believe that SPD must and should not be used as a flexible policy lever, which can be revised on a whim by the council, to introduce what are effectively new policy requirements. SPD should only further explain and support the policy not prescribe it. To this extent the HBF continue to dislike the saved local plan policy H10 to which this SPD refers, as it is onerous and lacks any specific reference to affordable housing site thresholds or percentages. It is this policy, which has set precedence for the continued misuse of SPD. To this extent the policy itself is actually meaningless and only states that affordable housing will be provided where appropriate. Of course it is the case that PPS3 has introduced a new lower threshold for affordable housing, and the HBF are aware that the requirements of PPS3 become applicable for development control from April 1st and as such will be a material consideration. However the requirements of PPS3 should be reflected in forthcoming development documents as intended by CLG.   

“6.  The policies in this PPS should be taken into account by Local Planning Authorities and Regional Planning Bodies in the preparation of their Local Development Documents and Regional Spatial Strategies (this includes the Mayor of London in preparing the Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London). They should consider the extent to which emerging Local Development Documents and Regional Spatial Strategies can have regard to the policies in this statement whilst maintaining plan-making programmes” (PPS3 paragraph 6). 
We admit there is no comprehensive guidance given as to the incorporation of the requirements of PPS3 in current local plans, only to say that should the council wish to reflect the requirement of PPS3 sooner through policy then an early review of the local plan should be undertaken, as suggested in the CLG letter accompanying PPS3 to local authorities. At this stage of the LDF process this does not appear to be a wise suggestion, neither does introducing requirements through SPD. 

In relation to the revised SPD criteria themselves, and in response to the council’s letter to us dated 2nd March, the HBF consider as already expressed that the affordable housing requirements are being introduced incorrectly. In addition the HBF consider that the following aspects are unjustified. Firstly in relation to tenure split, the HBF does not consider that the council has given full consideration to the issue of site viability in requiring 80% of the affordable component to be social rented on sites of 15-24 dwellings. In the circumstances it should adopt a more flexible approach. At the very least indicate that this is the starting point, and site viability as well as site specific constraints will also be given due regard in the decision making process. 

The HBF insist at the very least that the council does not require these new onerous affordable housing requirements upon applications which have been submitted prior to April 1st. Clearly this demonstrates a very unreasonable attitude from the council, one which has absolutely no concern for the viability and financial consequences that this requirement will have upon relevant planning applications. We can assure the Council that this requirement will risk making sites unviable or will significantly impact upon the financial return / market potential of a scheme. It is the case that developers have worked out the financial package of currently submitted schemes and the price they are committed to paying for land. Onerous requirements, which are imposed after submission of a planning application, cannot be negotiated off the land price. This situation will undermine the confidence that developers will have in the council, especially considering that we exist in a planning climate of transparency between local government and the building industries, where pre application discussions are encouraged to ensure both parties know what is required of each other prior to the submission of applications. To this extent the HBF consider that the council are undermining positive planning practice and the spirit of early engagement, in the pursuit of maximum affordable housing delivery. This is a flawed approach especially if the sites impacted by the revised SPD are not built out within the intended timescale / if at all, and housing delivery in Fareham is frustrated as a result. We reiterate that the requirements of this revised SPD at the very least should not be required upon applications submitted before April 1st. To require a revised requirement on applications, which have already been submitted, is so unreasonable it defies commonsense. 

To further support our concerns about the viability of schemes coming forward the HBF wish to draw the following aspects of government policy to the attention of the council. It is the case that PPS3 states the following. 

“29.  In Local Development Documents, Local Planning Authorities should:

– Set an overall (ie plan-wide) target for the amount of affordable housing to be provided. The target should reflect the new definition of affordable housing in this PPS.19 It should also reflect an assessment of the likely economic viability of land for housing within the area, taking account of risks to delivery and drawing on informed assessments of the likely levels of finance available for affordable housing, including public subsidy and the level of developer contribution that can reasonably be secured. Local Planning Authorities should aim to ensure that provision of affordable housing meets the needs of both current and future occupiers, taking into account information from the Strategic Housing Market Assessment” (PPS3 paragraph 29).
Additionally PPS1 states that in preparing development plans, planning authorities should;

“(iii) Not impose disproportionate costs, in terms of environmental and social impacts, or by unnecessarily constraining otherwise beneficial economic and social development.

(iv) Have regard to the resources likely to be available for implementation and the costs likely to be incurred, and be realistic about what can be implemented over the period of the plan (PPS1 paragraph 26)” 

In the circumstances the HBF consider that the Council refrains from implementing these requirements and waits for their full and necessary testing through the statutory process of the core strategy examination. The HBF would welcome a prompt reply to our comments, including how the council is going to proceed on this matter as a consequence of our concerns. May we suggest that an alternative approach is required, or the council risks considerable risk of planning appeals in relation to the application of the revised affordable housing standards. In the circumstances it would be most interesting to gain the view of GOSE on this matter.  

Yours sincerely


Bartholomew Wren
Regional Planner (Southern Region)

THE HOME BUILDERS FEDERATION








